
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Meeting: Thursday, 13th June, 2019
   at 2.00 pm (Committee Room No.4)

Group Meetings at 1.15 p.m.

A G E N D A
PART ONE

1.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

2.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

3.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

4.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

5.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  

6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 14th March, 2019.

3 - 4



FOR DECISION 

(D) 7.  Appointment of Representatives to Working Groups etc 
 

5 - 6

(D) 8.  Housing Management Performance Report 2018/19 
 

7 - 16

(D) 9.  Cumbria Choice: Choice-Based Lettings Upgrade 
 

17 - 20

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM MEMBERS

Councillors: Hamilton (Chairman)
Barlow
Blezard
Brook
Burley
W. McClure
McEwan
Robson
Worthington

Tenant Reps: Tenant Representatives to be appointed at Tenants’ Forum AGM on 10th 
June, 2019

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:

Paula Westwood
Democratic Services Officer 
(Member Support)
01229 876322
pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Wednesday 5th June, 2019



HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Meeting: Thursday 14th March, 2019
at 2.00 p.m. (Committee Room No. 4)

PRESENT:- Councillors Hamilton (Chairman) and Blezard.

Tenant Representative:- Mrs M. Anderson.

Officers Present:- Janice Sharp (Assistant Director - Housing), Paula Westwood 
(Democratic Services Officer - Member Support) and Katie Pepper (Democratic and 
Electoral Services Apprentice). 

41 – Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Barlow, Brook and 
McEwan and from Tenant Representative Mr A McIntosh. 

42 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 17th January, 2019 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

43 – Joint Working Protocol for Cumbria Extra Care Housing Forum

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted a report regarding a Joint Working 
Protocol to support the delivery aims of the Cumbria Extra Care Housing Forum.  
Members had been requested to note the Joint Working Protocol for Cumbria Extra 
Care Housing Forum, a copy of which had been appended to the report.  

She advised that the Protocol was between the District Councils, Cumbria County 
Council, the Lake District National Park Authority and Yorkshire Dales National Park 
Authority regarding the commissioning and delivery of Extra Care Housing in 
Cumbria.  It defined the intended respective roles and responsibilities of the Councils.  
She advised that each District Council within Cumbria was the strategic lead for 
housing in its area and, as such, was responsible for identifying future housing need 
and working with partners, primarily Cumbria County Council, to deliver the need 
identified.

She added that the County Council was responsible for commissioning and delivering 
social care in Cumbria including within Extra Care Housing.  The National Park Local 
Planning Authorities were responsible for carrying out specific planning functions for 
a particular area including developing planning policy, allocating land and assessing 
applications for development.

It was noted that all the parties had agreed to work together to identify the need for, 
and assist in the delivery of, Extra Care Housing in the county.  The protocol had 
been drawn up by the Extra Care Housing Forum of which this Council’s Housing 
Service was a member, established under Cumbria Housing Group to facilitate joint 
working between the parties.

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



The protocol aimed to provide a good working basis between the parties and to give 
a basis for each party to work in partnership for mutual benefit alongside retaining to 
pursue each party’s own objective.

There was a need for effective linkage between the key elements of housing and 
social care to ensure a seamless process for delivering Extra Care Housing by 
creating and responding to opportunities as they arose.

RECOMMENDED:- To note the Joint Working Protocol for Cumbria Extra Care 
Housing Forum.

44 – Schedule of Rates Price Increase for Gas Servicing and Maintenance 
Contract

The Assistant Director - Housing submitted a report for the purpose of considering a 
2.4% increase on the schedule of rate items and preliminary costs contained within 
the 2015 Gas Servicing and Maintenance Contract.

She advised that on 11th June, 2015, Members had agreed to appoint Sure Group to 
provide gas maintenance services for Council Tenants.  The procurement had been 
facilitated by Procure Plus Holdings under OJEU (Official Journal of the European 
Union procedures).  In November 2019, the Contract would have been operational 
for a period of four years and, during that time, the initial costs provided by Sure 
Group had remained unchanged.

She advised Members that in November 2018, a request had been received from 
Sure Group to uplift the Contract costs (Schedule of Rate items and Preliminary 
Costs) in line with inflation. 

She reported that following a review of the proposals by Procure Plus Holdings, a 
number of key cost increases had been identified as follows:-

• Labour – From October 2017 directly employed staff from Sure Group had 
received a minimum cost of living pay increase of 2%, with the majority 
receiving significantly higher increases in order to stay in line with rates offered 
in the local market with average pay increase of 2.86%.

• Fuel – Diesel prices had increased 10% from May 2017 (mid-point) initial three-
year contract £1.18 to £1.31 per litre (December 2018).

• Materials – Sure Group had provided Procure Plus Holdings details from City 
Plumbing which gave an average price increase of 2.48% with some regularly 
used replacement parts, such as Fans and PCBs, increasing by as much as 
15% between 2016/2017 and 2017/2018. 

RECOMMENDED:- To agree a 2.4% increase on the schedule of rate items and 
preliminary costs contained in the 2015 Gas Servicing and Maintenance Contract 
(Sure Group) in line with the evaluation and recommendations provided by Procure 
Plus Holdings.

The meeting closed at 2.16 p.m.

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



             Part One

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting: 13th June, 2019

Reporting Officer: Janice Sharp
 Assistant Director-Housing    

(D)

Title:  Appointment of Representatives to Working Groups etc

Summary and Conclusions: 

The Council on 20th May, 2019 gave delegated authority to Committees to 
make appointments to Outside Bodies, Working Groups etc. in accordance 
with the number and allocation of seats to political groups agreed at the 
meeting.  In the case of the Housing Management Forum this involves 
appointments to the Tenant Scrutiny Working Group and the Tenants’ 
Complaints Panel.

Recommendations: 

You are requested to make recommendations regarding appointments to the 
following Working Groups:

Tenant Scrutiny Working Group:- three Members (2:1) and three Tenant 
Representatives; and

Tenants’ Complaints Panel:- one Member (1:0) and two Tenant 
Representatives.

Note:- (Labour: Conservative).

Report

At the Annual Council meeting on 20th May, 2019 the allocation of seats in 
respect of Forums, Panels, Working Groups etc. were agreed.

You are requested therefore to nominate Members and Tenant 
Representatives to the Tenant Scrutiny Working Group and the Tenants’ 
Complaints Panel for 2019/2020 in accordance with the notional seat 
allocations outlined above.

Note:- Membership for 2018/19 was as follows:-

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



Tenant Scrutiny Working Group

Council Representatives (2:1) Councillors Barlow, Heath and McEwan.
Tenant Representatives – Mrs M. Anderson, Mr M Gray and Mr A. McIntosh

Tenants’ Complaints Panel

Council Representatives (1:0) Councillor Hamilton.
Tenant Representatives – Mrs M. Anderson and Mr A. McIntosh

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

 The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no health and safety implications. 

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 6

Agenda Item 7



                                                                                                  
       Part One

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting:     13th June 2019

Reporting Officer:   Rebecca Halton, Business   
Support Manager

(D)

Title:   Housing Management Performance Report 2018/19

Summary and Conclusions: 

The end of year performance information and this Report provides a brief 
commentary to assist Members in their understanding of the key trends and 
the actions which follow.

Recommendations: 

Members are asked to:

1. Note the information contained in the report and at Appendix 1; and

2. Agree Actions 1-4 within the report for 2019/20.

Report

The end of year performance information is attached at Appendix 1.

Reporting Performance Information

In October 2017, the Housing Service went live with Cx, a new housing 
management system. In doing so we were able to access and run a suite of 
standard reports written by Civica that output the information held in Cx. 

In looking at the output of the reports in more detail and carrying out significant 
validation work since the implementation of Cx, it became clear that their integrity 
could not be relied upon. This is the result of the data source the reports use (the 
cube).  This method relies on around seven key ‘fact’ tables that are repopulated 
each night which sum up basic information at period and month level.  When 
comparing this to data pulled directly from the Cx database, it is evident that the 
cube cannot be relied upon and as such we have needed create new reports that 
instead use the database as the source. 

We have enlisted the expertise of Jim Walker from Dtl Consultancy to create the 
reports that are needed.  We had to prioritise the development of reports to ensure 

Page 7

Agenda Item 8



that those needed for financial reconciliation and Audit purposes were in place 
first.

We have been successful in achieving this and we are now at a stage where we 
are confident we have the key checks and balances in place to satisfy Audit and 
also Finance.

This, however, has meant that we have not been able to create all of the 
performance reports required to provide a full set of performance information at 
year end.  We have made significant progress and been able to provide more 
information in comparison to the last meeting as can be seen in Appendix 1.

It is a priority over the coming financial year to create the remaining performance 
reports.

2018/19 - Priorities

Identifying and supporting vulnerable Tenants, especially those claiming 
Universal Credit 

 We, as a service, continue to support vulnerable Tenants, identifying those 
who may be finding the transition to Universal Credit difficult and finding ways 
to assist them in providing/updating their information on their Tenant Journal 
and also helping them to set up bank accounts and payment options.

 There are currently 294 Tenants claiming Universal Credit Housing Costs that 
we know of.  This number will increase as more people become eligible to 
move over from legacy benefits. We have created a process within Cx to 
record Universal Credit information, which will allow us to report on such 
information and target those who may be struggling. This will be rolled out 
within the next month.

 Housing Officers and our Money Management Advisor have helped a total of 
801 Tenants successfully apply for reduced water tariffs.  249 Tenants have 
been supported onto reduced tariffs in the last 12 months alone, which will be 
of huge benefit to those vulnerable Tenants on low incomes.

Reduce risk to HRA income by continuing to improve rent collection

 Current arrears figures remain similar to those for the 2017/18 financial year 
with only a slight increase seen of 0.8%.  The current arrears increased more 
significantly between 2016/17 and 2017/18 (20%), which was expected given 
the challenges of Universal Credit and the sanctions applied to legacy benefits 
as well as the benefit cap having been introduced around this time. 

 34.5% of Tenants now pay by direct debit.
 

 Evictions for arrears have decreased to 14 and the number of tenancy 
terminations (voids) have decreased compared to last year.

Page 8

Agenda Item 8



 We are trialling the use of mobile devices in the community by Housing 
Officers to enable them to have access to Cx whilst out visiting 
Tenants/Estates to check rent accounts and provide rent account information 
to Tenants.  The devices also have access to the internet so can be used to 
help Tenants access their Journals and make payments online when they 
otherwise would not be able to.  We are monitoring the benefits of this way of 
working with a view to rolling this out more widely.

 We are looking to increase the payment options available to Tenants who 
want to pay by direct debit to include weekly collections and collections on any 
day of the week.  This method of payment is more easily managed both in 
terms of ensuring the amounts being paid cover all the charges and also in 
terms of knowing where payments fail so that this can be addressed quickly.

Continue to develop the Cx system to help Officers work more effectively 
and enable a self-serve facility for those Tenants wishing to access the 
service outside of normal office hours

 Cx has been live since October 2017.

 We are now in a much more stable position with Cx and Housing Staff are able 
to use the system with more confidence and are finding the system easier to 
navigate.

 Upgrades have taken place since the initial ‘Go Live’, which have addressed a 
number of outstanding issues we had. 

 We continue to work with Jim Walker from Dtl Consultancy to improve Cx 
particularly around the current and former arrears policies that are embedded 
within the Income & Debt Recovery Team to ensure that the system is able to 
assist the Officers in monitoring accounts and taking the necessary actions as 
a result.

 We are looking at various other projects within Cx that will streamline some 
processes to make them more efficient and improve the way we record data.

 Tenant Portal, which is a self-serve facility for Tenants to access their 
information and report basic repairs, is nearing completion and will enhance 
the service Tenants receive.

 We continue to make progress on performance reporting within Cx and are 
mindful of the benefits of doing this in embedding new processes within Cx.

Voids & Empty Properties

 Unfortunately we are unable to report on rent loss due to empty properties 
(voids) at the moment due to the integrity of the reports designed to provide 
this information not being verified following validation work.  It is a priority for 

Page 9

Agenda Item 8



the coming financial year to work with Jim Walker from Dtl Consultancy to 
create new reports that allow us to confidently report on such information 
knowing that the integrity of them is at the standard we expect.

 What we do know is that whilst the number of voids have decreased compared 
to last year, void turnover has been slower with the average number of days a 
property is void having increased, which has been addressed by the 
Maintenance Manager and Assistant Director - Housing and a plan is now in 
place to improve this going forward into the next financial year.  

 The number of properties which are accepted on first offer has dropped by 
10% since last year, which will also impact on the number of days a property 
remains void.  We continue to monitor the reasons for refusals and take action 
where necessary.

 The highest turnover of properties was in the Vulcan area (13.3%) with the 
lowest turnover being Devonshire Road area (0%) based on properties that 
came available April 2018- March 2019.

 116 voids were one bed flats and is the property type with the highest turnover.

 Two thirds of all voids were flats; mostly on Ormsgill.

 The days taken to turn around voids (including the time spent undergoing 
major repairs) has risen again from 54 days to 61 days. 

Influences for 2019/20 

Rent Collection

 With a loss of 1% to rent income and more movement from HB to Universal 
Credit we will continue to look at ways to manage the effects of this.

 Cx will enable easier and better long-term asset management planning.

 Mobile devices set up to enable remote working will assist Housing Officers in 
maximising the opportunities for Tenants to make payments and also ensure 
their Journals are up to date.

 Increased payment options with direct debits will provide a more effective way 
of collecting rent.

Business Planning

 Cx will provide opportunities for improved efficiency across the service and this 
is being considered as part of an ongoing project plan for Cx now that the 
system is fully operational.

Page 10

Agenda Item 8



Control of Maintenance Expenditure

 The emphasis will still be to reduce void turnaround times, improve routine 
maintenance services and to maintain the Decent Homes standard.

RTB

 Right to Buys tripled in 2016/17 however the number of properties sold in 
2017/18 dropped by a third compared to the previous year with no increase 
seen in sales for the 2018/19 financial year. General needs dwellings stand at 
2,557.

Actions for 2019/20

Action 1: Continue to concentrate efforts in identifying and supporting vulnerable 
Tenants who are claiming Universal Credit. 

Action 2: Reduce risk to HRA income by continuing to improve rent collection. 

Action 3: Continue to develop the Cx system to help Officers work more effectively and 
introduce a self-serve facility for those Tenants wishing to access the service 
outside of normal office hours.

Action 4: Improve the monitoring of and management of void properties.  

Action 5: Maximise income by introducing more direct debit payment 
options to include weekly collections and collections any day of the week.

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

 The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The actions support an improved financial position.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no detrimental impact the built environment or public realm.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any of 
the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of users 
of this service.

Background Papers   

Nil

Page 12

Agenda Item 8



HOUSING MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE INFORMATION: 2018/19 

Arrears & Collection- Dwellings (exc. Dispersed) Actual 
2016/17

Actual 
2017/18

Apr-June       
2018/19

Apr-Sept 
2018/19

Apr-Dec 
2018/19

Actual 
2018/19

£ Rent & Service Charges due (Including empty 
properties) £11,268,457 £10,913,680 £2,692,039 £5,370,912 £8,037,833 £10,682,982

£ Rent loss due to empty dwellings (voids) £89,067.00      

£ Rent collected from Current Tenants £10,998,033      

£ Rent collected from Former Tenants £64,087      

Total Rent collected as % of rent due 98.38%      

£ Current Arrears £394,752 £473,551 £523,504 £508,796 £537,066.42 £477,382

£ Former Arrears £265,780 £300,205 £310,344 £290,577 £303,138.32 £279,954

£ Write Offs (Gross) £96,474 £71,297 £18,144 £60,159 £71,636 £142,675

No. tenants evicted for rent arrears 25 19 4 7 11 14

£ Rent Arrears UC claimants       

Arrears & Collection - Other Properties       

£ Rent arrears Dispersed  (Homeless) £2,203 £2,586 £834 £870 £3,519.87 £2,381

£ Rent arrears Garages £7,748 £7,789 £9,734 £6,837.91 £8,560.50 £3,860

£ Rent Arrears Shops £6,070 £6,337 £5,050 £4,283 £4,583.33 £3,565

£ rent loss due to empty Dispersed (Homeless) £32,390      

£ rent loss due to empty Garages £1,656      

£ rent loss due to empty Shops £0      

Voids & Lettings (General Needs)       

Total Dwellings 2601 2579 2575 2568 2562 2557

Total number of re-lets 248 255 50 107 151 207

%  of re-lets accepted on first offer 68.1% 63.1% 53.6% 59.8% 56.7% 57.4%

Number of re-lets that underwent Major Works 94 84 8 29 47 73

Average re-let time in days (Standard) 12 44 46 52 53 52

Average re-let time in days (Major Works) 40 74 61 72 77 76

Average re-let time in days (all re-lets) 52 54 50 57 60 61

No.of  units vacant &  available for letting at period end 5 8 10 7 5 5
No.of units vacant but unavailable for letting at period 
end 37 28 34 33 30 31

No.Tenancies terminated 261 189 62 118 165 223

Tenancy Turnover % 10.0% 7.3% 2.4% 4.6% 6.4% 8.7%

ASB       

Number of new anti-social behaviour cases reported 38      

Number of closed successfully resolved ASB cases 5      

Number of closed unresolved anti-social behaviour cases 3      

Repairs & Maintenance       
Average number of calendar days taken to complete 
repairs 18      

Percentage of repairs completed at first visit 94.85%      

% all responsive repairs completed on time 85.88%      

Number Repair Orders completed 6,190      

Average Responsive repairs per property 2.2      
Appointments kept as a percentage of appointments 
made 87.59%      

Page 13

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



   

Major Works & Cyclical Maintenance Actual 
2016/17

Actual 
2017/18

Apr-June       
2018/19

Apr-Sept 
2018/19

Apr-Dec 
2018/19

Actual 
2018/19

Percentage of dwellings with  a gas safety certificate 
renewed by anniversary 100%      

Percentage of homes that fail to meet the Decent 
Homes Standard 0%      

*Average SAP rating of dwellings at end of year (based 
on RD SAP 9.83) 69.4      

Homelessness FROM APRIL 2018       

Average days in temporary (dispersed) accommodation 77 58.8 37 49 57 61

Average days in B&B accommodation 62 5.81 1.4 1.5 2.0 6.6

Number of triage assessments  136 276 405 528

Number of Homeless Prevention cases opened  46 83 119 146

Number of Homeless Relief cases opened  28 62 99 142

Number that failed to attend appointments Can provide from July 2018 18 38 73

Number of Successful Prevention cases  22 42 72 95

Number of Successful Relief cases  9 36 53 77

Number cases closed without successful outcome  6 21 36 55
Number of decisions made that main housing duty is not 
owed  2 4 11 16

Number owed the main housing duty (final duty)

U
nable to provide as new

 com
parison 

due to new
 legisaltion

 1 2 4 6

Employees       

Average permanent employee headcount 53 43 47 45 48 50

Number of leavers 0 9 1 4 5 6

Ave. working days lost / sickness absence 13.1 11.3 14.2 21.03 15.4 14.1

Customer Complaints       

The number of Stage 1 complaints upheld in the year 4 3 0 3 5 5

Water Charge Collection       

Total number of direct debit payers       

Number of rent agreements where a water support 
tariff or help to pay scheme is in place 562 552 not 

available 606 675 801

Housing Register       

Cumbria Choice Register- Total number of applications 
that are Active or Under Review Active for the period 
shown

1186 1127 1066 1215 1354 1419

Housing Stock       

Houses 1223 1205 1203 1196 1192 1188

Flats 1221 1218 1216 1216 1214 1213

Bungalows 156 156 156 156 156 156

General Needs Dwellings 2600 2579 2575 2568 2562 2557

Dispersed 12 13 15 16 16 17

Homeless (Cold Weather Provision) 1 0 0 0 0 0

New Lives Project 2 2 2 2 2 2

Adelphi Court 12 12 12 12 12 12

Total Dwelling Stock 2627 2606 2604 2598 2592 2588

Page 14

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



Notes to accompany Appendix A

Garage arrears- There is some variation in the arrears figures between the 
periods when looking at the garages and this is particularly evident when 
comparing the 2017/18 and 2018/19 financial years. Validation work has been 
carried out and I can confirm that a number of accounts with quite large arrears 
were reduced significantly over the 12 month period. Most tenants pay monthly so 
this can also affect the figures reported if the payment date falls after the reporting 
period.

Dispersed arrears- Period 2 and 3 saw a large increase is dispersed arrears. This 
has been validated as being a true reflection of the arrears between the periods. 
Some new licences were started which led to large arrears until benefits were in 
payment and arrears increased in general on those already in dispersed. The 
report only includes current arrears for dispersed and due to the high turnover of 
dispersed accommodation, there will be some periods where more properties were 
occupied in that period and therefore arrears will be higher. 

RTB & Land Values       

£ Houses £1,170,025 £779,460 £64,200 £331,590 £552,615 £741,265

£ Flats £87,820 £47,700 £0 £18,000 £60,500 £88,000

£ Bungalows £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£ Land £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

TOTAL £1,257,845 £827,160 £64,200 £349,590 £613,115 £829,265

Housing Stock (continued) Actual 
2016/17

Actual 
2017/18

Apr-June       
2018/19

Apr-Sept 
2018/19

Apr-Dec 
2018/19

Actual 
2018/19

Community Centres 5 5 5 4 4 4

Leaseholds 212 215 215 216 218 219

Garages 504 504 504 504 504 504

Shops 19 19 19 19 19 19

TOTAL PROPERTIES 3367 3349 3347 3341 3337 3334

Sold 2017/18 Sold YTD

18 17

3 4

0 0

0 0

Page 15

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                              
                                                                                              Part One

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting:     13th June 2019

Reporting Officer:   Janice Sharp
Assistant Director - Housing

(D)

Title:   Cumbria Choice: Choice-Based Lettings Upgrade

Summary and Conclusions: 

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an update and progress 
on Cumbria Choice-Based Lettings (CBL) software upgrade, governance and 
way forward for the future.

Recommendations: 

Members are asked to:

1. Note the content of the report;
2. Agree the contract change to upgrade the CBL IT system with Civica; and
3. Agree that the Assistant Director – Housing makes reasonable resources 

available from the HRA Budget 2019/2020 to contribute towards any cost 
to upgrade the existing system.

Report

Cumbria Choice-Based Lettings Facts

 There are currently over 13,000 applications registered on Cumbria 
Choice across Cumbria.

 We are continually seeing a growing increase in the number of applicants 
choosing to register online, however the current software for CBL needs 
updating to make this easier for applicants.

 A Partnership Agreement is in place bringing together all District Councils 
and the main registered providers who jointly oversee the delivery.  This 
sets out the governance arrangements.

 Since the implementation of the partnership, South Lakeland District 
Council have managed the budget for CBL, however, they have recently 
advised the Project Board they would like another Local Authority Partner 
to take this role over.  Barrow Borough Council Finance Department have 
agreed to take over management of the budget for the Partnership going 
forward from this financial year.

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



 South Lakeland District Council employs the CBL Manager - each of the 
districts contributes to this post.

 The CBL Project Board meets every two months supported by the 
Operations Group.

 CBL sits within Cumbria Housing Group framework.  The RP/LA 
(Registered Providers/Local Authority) Group is the lead for CBL in 
Cumbria.

 Cumbria Housing Partners were commissioned and carried out full review 
of the Civica contract and made recommendations to Project Board: to 
avoid excessive risk and get the best possible service moving forward, 
Civica should be retained as the ICT supplier and work with them to get 
the strongest possible solution.

 Barrow Borough Council has taken the lead in the review of the Homeless 
Reduction Act (HRAct).  Guidance has been completed and sits as an 
appendix to the CBL Policy to ensure the Partnership is compliant with the 
Act.

 The Partnership Agreement is due for review and in the future contains a 
funding liability, opt-out arrangements and engagement requirements from 
each Partner.

 The system meets the need for Data Protection legislation now and in the 
future.

 Partners share the capital and revenue costs and procurement 
arrangements are reviewed.

 Joint funding is secured to continue working with a specialist ICT 
consultant to deliver system improvements needed both in the short and 
long term. 

Next Steps

 Project Board have commissioned Solicitors to review the HRAct 
Guidance to ensure compliance with HRAct legislation.

 Civica are preparing Contracts for each of the Districts within the Cumbria 
Choice Partnership for the ‘contract change upgrade’.  All Districts will be 
responsible for their share of the capital cost for the upgrade.

(i) Legal Implications

Solicitors have been commissioned by Project Board to check HRAct compliance. 
Contract documents will also be reviewed for procurement compliance.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The Cumbria Choice Partnership provides a common allocation policy across 
Cumbria.  The policy is transparent for customers and all partners benefit from the 

Page 18

Agenda Item 9



partnership arrangement sharing a shared IT system, policy and procedures and a 
central CBL Manager role.  The software from Civica that is currently being used in 
Cumbria Choice is now considerably out of date, having not being upgraded since 
the partnership was established.  There are numerous operating difficulties. The 
RP/LA Group agreed the excessive risk of running the current IT System is high 
and, moving forward, Civica should be retained at present and the current IT 
system upgraded to get the strongest possible solution.

(iii) Financial Implications

Agree the Assistant Director - Housing make reasonable resources available from 
the HRA budget 2019/20 to contribute towards the upgrade cost to improve the 
existing system going forward.
.
(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no detrimental impact the built environment or public realm.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any of 
the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of users 
of this service.

Background Papers   

Nil

Page 19

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	7 Appointment of Representatives to Working Groups etc
	8 Housing Management Performance Report 2018/19
	APPENDIX  to Housing Management Performance Report 2018 2019

	9 Cumbria Choice: Choice-Based Lettings Upgrade

